
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Beck

AGENDA November 18, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Beck

Presentation Commissioner Sabrena Smedley honoring Lieutenant Commander Tim White and Chief Petty
Officer Joseph Capozzi for their outstanding Dedicated Military Service.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - October 28, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - October 28, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - November 4, 2015

Report Quarterly Investment Report

Report Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon November 9, 2015

Report Unaudited Financial Reports Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015 for Circuit Court Clerk, Clerk and
Master, County Clerk, and Register.

Res. No. 1115-16 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, the oaths of Judicial Commissioners, and the bond of Executive
Director of Hamilton County 911 Emergency Communications District.

Res. No. 1115-17A A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
property located at 8237 Roy Lane.

Res. No. 1115-17B A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District,
property located at 8237 Roy Lane.

Res. No. 1115-18 A Resolution granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development
for property located at 8237 Roy Lane.

Res. No. 1115-19 A Resolution to decrease the expenditure budget for the Juvenile Court Judge by $55,461.59
and increase the expenditure budget for the Sheriff by $55,461.59.

Res. No. 1115-20 A Resolution making an appropriation to the City of Chattanooga in the amount of one thousand
five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four, to assist with renovations at South Chattanooga Youth and Family Development Center.

Res. No. 1115-21 A Resolution making an appropriation to the Tides Foundation in the amount of two thousand
five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four.

Res. No. 1115-22 A Resolution making an appropriation to the Tides Foundation in the amount of two thousand
five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Five.

Res. No. 1115-23 A Resolution amending and extending the contract with Tennessee Valley Railroad Museum,
Inc. (“TVRM”) for management of the rail yard and tracks at the Enterprise South Industrial Park
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-24 A Resolution authorizing payment for the acquisition of Rights-Of-Way required for the
construction of the Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, Mountain View Road and Blanche Road
intersection improvements in the amount of $23,900 of which 80 percent of the cost will be
reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Tennessee Department of Transportation and 20 percent
match to be paid by Hamilton County.

Res. No. 1115-25 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to accept a $460,000 Local Parks and Recreation
Fund grant from the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation to develop horse
trails at Enterprise South Nature Park and to sign any and all grant-related contracts and
documents.



Res. No. 1115-26 A Resolution accepting the bid of Prater Ford, Inc. for mid-size and small utility vehicles for
Hamilton County and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-27 A Resolution accepting the bids of Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and SiteOne Landscape Supply
for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning December 4, 2015, through December 3, 2016, for
sod for the Recreation Department and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-28 A Resolution accepting the bid of Raines Brothers, Inc. for the Courthouse south entrance
marble step landing renovation amounting to $58,890.00 for the Maintenance Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-29 A Resolution accepting the bid of Z-Band, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning November 18,
2015, through November 17, 2016, for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-30 A Resolution accepting the proposal of EPB Fiber Optics for internet connectivity for the period
December 1, 2015, through November 30, 2018, with the option to renew for an additional three
years on an annual basis, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-31 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of $416,700.00 to
provide Sexually Transmitted Disease and HIV Education, Prevention and Control Services in
Hamilton County, for a time period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016.

Res. No. 1115-32 A Resolution accepting the bid of Young Electric Company, Inc. for an emergency generator
addition for the Sequoyah Health Center amounting to $91,617.00 and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1115-33 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
accept a grant supplement in the amount of $255,012.00 from the Health Resources and
Services Administration (HRSA) and to increase the expense and revenue budgets by
$255,012.00.

Res. No. 1115-34 A Resolution making an appropriation to Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department in the amount
of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to
District Nine.

Res. No. 1115-35 A Resolution approving the transferring of $34,000.00 in discretionary bond funds as allotted to
County Commission District Five to County Commission District Seven, and the transferring of a
like amount in General Fund Discretionary Funds as allotted to County Commission District
Seven to County Commission District Five.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 28, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 28th day of October, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor’s Chief of Staff Mike Compton, members 

of his administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Neill Southerland, and County 

Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Mackey introduced Ms. Susanne Alexander, member of Spiritual 

Assembly of the Baha’is, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Mackey led in the 

pledge to the flag. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 

2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1015-54  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE MCKEE FOODS CORPORATION PROJECT, TO DELEGATE 

CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 

AD VALOREM TAXES.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1015-54.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

  

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 

3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1015-55  A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING TWO (2) JUDICIAL 

COMMISSIONERS FOR A ONE (1) YEAR TERM, COMMENCING MAY 1, 2015, AND 

EXPIRING APRIL 30, 2016; DESIGNATING A CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER; 

AND ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED BY EACH DURING 

THEIR RESPECTIVE TERM(S) IN OFFICE.  

 

 This Resolution reappoints Nathaniel Goggans and Ron Powers.  

  

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1015-55. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, Chairman Bankston clarified that a 

separate Resolution would be presented to designate a Chief Judicial Commissioner.  

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 

4 
 

 At this time, a lengthy discussion took place among Commissioners regarding 

the term of office dates for Nathaniel Goggans and Ron Powers. It was noted that the 

dates were listed incorrectly in the title of the Resolution. The correct term should 

commence November 1, 2015 and end October 31, 2016. Chairman Bankston asked 

that Assistant Attorney Southerland report back to the Commission with the appropriate 

steps to correct the term of office dates.  

 

 In response to Chairman Bankston’s question, Clerk Knowles reported that since 

the Resolution had been adopted, a motion to reconsider would be the procedure to 

revisit the Resolution.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

reconsider Resolution No. 1015-55. 

 

 Commissioner Fields pointed out that while the title of resolution contained a typo 

and stated the wrong term, the body of the resolution consistently stated the correct 

term.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fields comments, Commissioner Graham withdrew 

his motion, and Commissioner Smedley withdrew her second.  

 

  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 

5 
 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 28, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 28th day of October, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. 

Commissioner Haynes was in the office and arrived moments after the roll was called.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were the County Mayor’s Chief of Staff Mike Compton, 

members of his administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Neill Southerland, and 

County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 2 

PRESENTATION-ARTSBUILD 

 

 Lee Davis, Chairman of the ArtsBuild Board of Directors, gave a presentation 

regarding additional funding for the non-profit organization. It was noted that Dan 

Bowers, President of ArtsBuild, was also present to answer any questions from 

Commissioners. Mr. Davis described how he became involved with the organization 

through the Chattanooga Boys Choir. He explained that many organizations in the 

community receive grants through ArtsBuild to assist in promoting arts, culture, and 

education. Mr. Davis added that the grants will not continue to be possible without 

additional funding.  

 

 Mr. Davis distributed a draft of a Resolution for Commissioners to consider. A 

copy was also distributed to the Clerk’s office. The proposal includes Commissioners 

meeting with their state delegates in order to levy a countywide cigarette tax that would 

be placed on the August 2016 ballot. The proceeds from the tax would be dedicated to 

arts and culture in Hamilton County. It was noted that the County Commission would be 

in charge of how the funds are distributed. Mr. Davis reported numbers from a poll taken 

by ArtsBuild in August. Out of 503 residents likely to vote in August 2016, 63 percent 

support and 43 percent oppose a cigarette tax to fund arts and culture.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 3 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mr. Davis reported that the 

expected revenue from the tax would be around 3 to 4 million dollars annually. It was 

noted that the expected revenue was calculated based on a tax on cigarettes only. He 

added that ArtsBuild is open to a tax on all tobacco products.  

 

 In response to Mr. Davis’ comments, Commissioner Beck noted that one day 

marijuana will be legalized in Tennessee and he encouraged the context of the 

proposed legislation to levy the tax on all tobacco products. 

 

 In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Mr. Davis confirmed that only 

the cigarette tax rather than all tobacco products determined the calculated expected 

revenue.   

 

 Commissioner Mackey commented that he supported this proposal for 

referendum, as it would allow the voters in Hamilton County to decide if they want to 

approve the tax.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question regarding e-cigarettes and vapor 

products, Mr. Davis explained that the organization would need assistance in 

determining how to include those products under the proposed tax. He noted that 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 4 

because of vapor products, the fastest growing demographic of tobacco users are 

young girls between ages 18 and 25.  

 

  Commissioner Boyd made comments about the necessity of funding arts and 

culture in Chattanooga. He reported some independent findings in District 6: $1.1 million 

was spent promoting art events; there were $57,500 attendees of art events, and $1.3 

million in revenue from those attendees in restaurants and shops downtown. He added 

that art in the community is an economic driver, and he will be supporting efforts for 

legislators to allow the tax on the ballot for voters to decide.  

 

 Commissioner Graham added that he will not be supporting a tobacco tax in 

Hamilton County. He explained the potential ripple effect that could take place if the tax 

is implemented, and the negative impact it would have on the poor. He added that while 

he does support the arts, he would not support a tax that could potentially penalize the 

poor.   

 

 Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Mackey responded to Commissioner 

Graham’s comments adding that the tax could be beneficial by encouraging poor people 

to consume fewer tobacco products.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 5 

 Commissioner Graham explained that he is granting the wishes of his 

constituents by not supporting the proposed tax.  

  

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• This Trustee’s Monthly Report and Excess Fee Report for September 2015 
would be submitted and made a matter of record.  

• Resolution No. 1115-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolution Nos. 1115-7 through 1115-9 and 1115-11 through 1115-14 were 
assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

• Resolution No. 1115-10 was not used. 
• Resolution Nos. 1115-2 through 1115-6 were heard by a Committee of the 

Whole. 
 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 1115-2 through 1115-6 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-2 

 

This Resolution reappoints William Raines to the Carter Street Corporation Board 

of Directors for a term ending November 8, 2019.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 6 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-3 

 

Commissioner Fields spoke regarding this Resolution, which appropriates 

$25,000.00 to the Pumpkin Patch from general fund discretionary monies as allotted to 

District 2. It was noted that the funds will assist with rebuilding the playground area used 

by residents of Hamilton County.  

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Commission Fields reported 

that the current estimate of the total cost of renovations is $250,000.00.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-4 

  

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $5,000.00 to 

Harrison Ruritan Foundation, Inc. from general fund discretionary monies as allotted to 

District 9. The funds will assist the non-profit with the purchase of a refrigerator and 

replacement lighting.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 7 

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s comments, Chairman Bankston added 

that the Harrison Ruritan Foundation does great work for the schools and community in 

Hamilton County.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-5 

  

Alecia Poe, Human Resource Director, spoke regarding this Resolution, which 

accepts the proposal of Kelly Services, Inc. for temporary employment agency services 

beginning January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, with the option to renew for 

four additional one-year periods. It was noted Kelly was low bid and that HR currently 

contracts with Kelly for the same services. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-6 

 

Alecia Poe, Human Resources Director, spoke regarding Resolution, which 

accepts the proposal of Application Software, Inc. dba Asiflex for flexible benefits plan 

administration services beginning January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2018, with the 

option to renew for three additional one-year periods. She added that the new vendor 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 8 

will save the Human Resources Department approximately.96 cents per participant per 

month.   

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

the Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about meeting with Debbie Smith, Principal of 

Chattanooga High Center for Creative Arts (CCA). He reported that CCA was one of 17 

schools recognized by an organization in Seattle, Washington for their involvement in 

the creative arts.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 9 

Commissioner Smedley congratulated the East Hamilton Girl’s Cross Country 

Team for advancing to the state tournament. She also announced that she would be 

holding her 4th community update meeting with City Councilman Larry Grohn on 

Thursday, November 4th at Hawkinsville Baptist Church on Pinewood Drive to address 

infrastructure needs.  

 

Chairman Bankston wished his wife a happy birthday.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Monty Bell, a homeless resident of Hamilton County for 17 years, addressed the 

Commission regarding racial disparity and education in the criminal justice system. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 
 
 

 10 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, November 4th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

      
      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved:       

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ) Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON ) November 4, 2015 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 4th day of November, 2015, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

2 

 

Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Gary Armes, Sr., Minister Hickory Valley 

Christian Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the 

flag.  

 

PRESENTATION – CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
– COMMUNITY HEALTH DATA PROFILE.   

  

Bill Ulmer, Director of Community Health Services thanked several people in 

attendance from the Regional Health Council and the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 

Health Department. He introduced Ione Farrar, Community Health Planner for the 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department who provided updated statistics 

regarding community health; the last community report was done in 2010. Topics of 

interest included demographics and social determinants of health, general health status, 

access to health care and coverage, infant and maternal health, chronic diseases and 

risk factors for chronic disease, injury and violence, mental and behavioral health, 

environmental health, and communicable diseases.  

 

The Mayor and several members of the commission thanked Becky Barnes, 

Administrator of Health Services, and her staff at the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 

Health Department for today’s presentation. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

3 

 

A copy of the presentation was given to members of the Commission, the Mayor, 

and the Clerk’s office. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, that the 

minutes of the Recessed Meeting of October 14, 2015, the Agenda Preparation Session 

of October 14, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of October 21, 2015, be approved, treat 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for September 2015 was submitted and made a 
matter of record.  

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

4 

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for September 2015 was submitted and made a 
matter of record.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BONDS AND 

OATHS OF NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-1. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 1115-2 through 1115-6 and 

1115-15 were heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

5 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-2  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CARTER STREET 

CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR A TERM ENDING NOVEMBER 8, 

2019. 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-2. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-3  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

PUMPKIN PATCH IN THE AMOUNT OF TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($25,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 

TO DISTRICT TWO. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-3. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

6 

 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-4  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

HARRISON RURITAN FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1115-4. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

7 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-5  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

KELLY SERVICES, INC. FOR TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT AGENCY SERVICES, 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2017, WITH THE 

OPTION TO RENEW FOR FOUR (4) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS, FOR 

THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-5. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-6  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

APPLICATION SOFTWARE, INC DBA ASIFLEX FOR FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN 

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES, BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2016, THROUGH 

DECEMBER 31, 2018, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE (3) 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

8 

 

ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS, FOR THE HUMAN RESOURCES 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-6. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-15  A RESOLUTION RE-DESIGNATING RANDALL L. 

RUSSELL AS CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER FOR A TERM BEGINNING 

NOVEMBER 1, 2015, AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2016, AND ESTABLISHING THE 

COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-15.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

9 

 

Several Commissioners questioned the proper process for appointing Chief 

Judicial Commissioner. Attorney Taylor responded and clarified that the selection of the 

Chief Judicial Commissioner was to be by nomination from any Commissioner. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

amend Resolution No. 1115-15 to replace the name of Randy L. Russell’s with a blank 

line and open the floor for nominations for Chief Judicial Commissioner. 

 

The foregoing motion to amend was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for nominations. 

 

 Commissioner Graham nominated Randall L. Russell for Chief Judicial 

Commissioner. There were no further nominations.  Clerk Knowles was asked to call 

the roll on the nomination. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

10 

 

County Clerk Knowles  called the roll, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Randall L. 

Russell”, Commissioner Boyd, “Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Randall 

L. Russell”, Commissioner Fields, “Randall L. Russell”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner Haynes, “Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner Smedley, “Randall L. Russell”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Randall L. Russell”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Randall L. Russell” votes – 9.   

 

Clerk Knowles was asked to call the roll on the Resolution with the name of 

Randall L. Russell in the blank. 

 

The foregoing Resolution 1115-15 as amended was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Bankston, “Aye.” 

 

Chairman Bankston noted for the record that although the outcome was the 

same as the original resolution, the Commission had followed previously established 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

11 

 

protocol in accepting nominations to fill the position prior t approval of the resolution 

making the appointment. 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 1115-7 through 1115-9 and 

1115-11 be considered together at this time.  He noted Resolution No. 1115-10 was not 

used. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-7  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CHRYSLER 

DODGE JEEP RAM OF COLUMBIA FOR ONE (1) SPECIAL SERVICE TRUCK 

AMOUNTING TO $27,415.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-8  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ASC 

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT USA, INC. FOR ONE (1) RUBBER TIRE WHEEL 

LOADER AND MULTIPLE ATTACHMENTS AMOUNTING TO $119,980.00 FOR THE 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-9  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2015, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

12 

 

THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-10  WAS NOT USED.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-11  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 

FOUR (4) LIFEPAK 15 CARDIAC MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATORS AND SUPPLIES 

AMOUNTING TO $147,657.88 FROM PHYSIO CONTROL, INC. FOR EMERGENCY 

MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 1115-7 through 

1115-9 and 1115-11, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 1115-7 through 1115-9 and 1115-11. The foregoing Resolutions 

were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the 

County Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

13 

 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-12  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

CHATTANOOGA PAPER AND PACKAGING, KELSAN, INC., CHATTANOOGA 

NOLAND COMPANY AND ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY FOR CONTRACT UNIT 

PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2016, FOR 

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-13  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION 

SUBCONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $156,000.00 WITH SOUTHSIDE/DODSON 

AVENUE COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS FOR THE PROVISION OF WOMEN, 

INFANTS AND CHILDREN (WIC) SERVICES FOR A 24 MONTH PERIOD TO 

INCLUDE OCTOBER 1, 2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2017.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

14 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-14  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE, HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY COALITION FOR SERVICES TO PREVENT THE INITIATION 

OF TOBACCO PRODUCT USE AND ELECTRONIC NICOTINE DELIVERY SYSTEM 

(ENDS) USE AMONG YOUTH USING ALREADY BUDGETED FUNDS FROM THE 

STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH’S TOBACCO SETTLEMENT GRANT IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $25,000.00 FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 

2016.  

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 1115-12 through 

1115-14 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval 

  

Commissioner Graham stated for the record that Roll-Aid Industrial Supply, one 

of the companies listed on Resolution No. 1115-12, is a customer of his print shop. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. Resolution Nos. 1115-12 through 1115-14. The foregoing 

Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members 

of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

15 

 

“Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Haynes thanked everyone for the get well wishes regarding his 

mother’s health. 

 

Commissioner Mackey thanked the 130 men that took the time to visit Orchard 

Knob Middle School this morning in order to provide positive role models and influence 

for students. 

 

Commissioner Graham invited everyone to attend a Salute to Veterans Program 

Thursday, November 5th at 7 pm. The Lookout Valley Neighborhood Association will 

host the event at John A. Patten Center, 3202 Kelly’s Ferry Road. He also encouraged 

everyone to attend the National Veterans Day ceremony held at the Chattanooga 

National Cemetery Wednesday, November 11th at 11 a.m.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

16 

 

 

Commissioner Boyd read a letter addressed to the Urban League Board aloud. 

The letter thanked the board for their very informative quarterly report. A copy of this 

letter was given to each Commissioner, the Mayor, and the Clerk’s office. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks invited veterans to attend the annual Free Dinner for 

Veterans taking place Wednesday, November 11th from 11:30 to 2 p.m. at First Baptist 

Church Soddy Daisy, 10185 Dayton Pike. He thanked veterans for their service and 

looks forward to volunteering at the event. 

 

Commissioner Smedley encouraged everyone to attend several events taking 

place in the next week. School board members and their spouses, and the commission 

and their spouses will be attending a joint dinner event hosted by TechTown at 325 

Market Street on Monday, November 16th at 6 p.m. She reported an Education 

Committee meeting will take place Wednesday, November 11th at 8:30 a.m.  Also on 

Wednesday, November 11th at 3 p.m. the Collegedale Veterans Park will unveil a 

sculpture statue dedicated to the five service men that lost their lives during the July 16th 

shootings. Additionally, Commissioner Smedley reported that a Community Forum 

Meeting will take place Thursday, November 12th, 6:30 to 8:30 p.m., Hawkinsville 

Missionary Baptist Church, 7463 Pinewood Drive.  She would be joined by City 

Councilman Larry Grohn for that meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 

 

17 

 

Commissioner Bankston congratulated the Ooltewah High School Football team 

on their recent regional victory and wished them the best during playoffs. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, November 11, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 

        

 

 

 

 

















































No. 1115-16 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 
NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF JUDICIAL 
COMMISSIONERS, AND THE BOND OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 
DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 
records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF JUDICIAL 
COMMISSIONERS” have taken the oath of office; and 

WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the person 
named on the attached listing labeled “THE BOND OF EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATONS DISTRICT”  has submitted for filing a bond as required 
in TCA Section 7-86-119; and 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 

2. That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
approved as taken; and 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF JUDICIAL    

COMMISSIONERS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; 
and 

 
4. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE BOND OF EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT” is filed and made a matter or record; and 

 
5. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



































No. 1115-  17A 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-121) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

8237 ROY LANE 
 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single 
Family Residential District, property located at 8237 Roy Lane, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on November 
18, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located 
at 8237 Roy Lane.  An unplatted tract of land located at 8237 Roy Lane and being the 
property described in Deed Book 10509, Page 516, ROHC.  Tax Map 104-020 as shown on 
the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1115-17B 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-121) 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

8237 ROY LANE 
 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 Single 
Family Residential District, property located at 8237 Roy Lane, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on November 
18, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone, subject to the condition that maximum density not exceed 3.0 dwelling 
units/acre as recommended by the adopted land use plan for the area, from A-1 
Agricultural District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, property located at 8237 Roy 
Lane.  An unplatted tract of land located at 8237 Roy Lane and being the property described 
in Deed Book 10509, Page 516, ROHC.  Tax Map 104-020 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1115-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
                                                                                                                   (P.C. NO. 2015-122) 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL 
EXCEPTIONS PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8237 ROY LANE 

 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential 
Planned Unit Development for property located at 8237 Roy Lane, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bryant Jackson requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on November 
18, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
hearing having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended 
granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development for property 
located at 8237 Roy Lane. An unplatted tract of land located at 8237 Roy Lane and being the 
property described in Deed Book 10509, Page 516, ROHC.  Tax Map 104-020 as shown on 
the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1115-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO DECREASE THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR THE JUVENILE COURT 
JUDGE BY $55,461.59 AND INCREASE THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR THE SHERIFF BY 
$55,461.59. 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff currently provides two (2) security personnel at the Juvenile Court and the 

Juvenile Court provides one (1) additional employee  for security at the Juvenile Court; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, said security is deemed necessary for the welfare of the Juvenile Court personnel and 

the public; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Juvenile Court and the Sheriff have agreed that it would be in the best interest of 

the County to transfer the security position currently employed by the Juvenile Court 
to the Sheriff; 

 
WHEREAS, the security position currently funded by the Juvenile Court is included in the fiscal 

year 2016 budget at a total cost, included employee benefits, of $55,461.59; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to decrease the budget for the Juvenile Court Judge and increase the 

budget for the Sheriff to account for this transfer. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the fiscal year 2016 expenditure budget for the Juvenile Court Judge be decreased by $55,461.59 
and the expenditure budget for the Sheriff be increased by $55,461.59. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1115-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE 
AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00) FROM GENERAL 
FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR, TO ASSIST WITH 
RENOVATIONS AT THE SOUTH CHATTANOOGA YOUTH AND FAMILY DEVELOPMENT 
CENTER. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga operates eighteen neighborhood Youth and Family Development 

Centers in the Chattanooga area; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need for certain renovations at the South Chattanooga Youth and Family 

Development Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey desires to allocate One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to assist with the renovations at 
said center; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That an appropriation to the City of Chattanooga in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
($1,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies as allotted to District Four, be approved to assist 
with renovations at the South Chattanooga Youth and Family Development Center. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1115-21 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE TIDES FOUNDATION IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL 
FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tides Foundation is a duly registered public charity, exempt from federal income 

taxation under Sections 501(c)3 and 509(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the NAACP has entered into an Agreement with said Foundation authorizing it to create 

and operate a Fund to make it possible for the NAACP to raise funds locally for projects 
which meet the goals of the national NAACP and which are eligible charitable activities 
for a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey desires to assist the NAACP in its progress with 

developing community initiatives and projects by making an appropriation to the Tides 
Foundation on behalf of the NAACP Collective Action Fund in the amount of Two 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00), from General Fund discretionary monies, 
as allotted to District Four; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to the Tides Foundation for the NAACP Collective Action Fund, to assist the NAACP in 
its progress with developing community initiatives and projects. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
 



 

 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 
appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1115-22 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE TIDES FOUNDATION IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL 
FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tides Foundation is a duly registered public charity, exempt from federal income 

taxation under Sections 501(c)3 and 509(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the NAACP has entered into an Agreement with said Foundation authorizing it to create 

and operate a Fund to make it possible for the NAACP to raise funds locally for projects 
which meet the goals of the national NAACP and which are eligible charitable activities 
for a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck desires to assist the NAACP in its progress with developing 

community initiatives and projects by making an appropriation to the Tides Foundation 
on behalf of the NAACP Collective Action Fund in the amount of Two Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00), from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 
District Five; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to the Tides Foundation for the NAACP Collective Action Fund, to assist the NAACP in 
its progress with developing community initiatives and projects. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
 



 

 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 
appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1115-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND EXTENDING THE CONTRACT WITH TENNESSEE 
VALLEY RAILROAD MUSEUM, INC. (“TVRM”) FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE RAIL 
YARD AND TRACKS AT THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.   
 
WHEREAS, the County, together with the City of Chattanooga (“City”), owns and operates 

the Enterprise South Industrial Park in Chattanooga (the “ESIP”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County, through its interlocal agreement with the City of Chattanooga 

regarding the management of ESIP, is responsible for overseeing the operation 
and maintenance of the railroad network located within ESIP, which is used to 
provide railcar storage and freight services for businesses located within ESIP; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a Request for Proposal issued for experienced railroad operators to 

manage all aspects of the rail network at ESIP, and by Resolution approved by 
the Hamilton County Commission on March 19, 2008, the County approved the 
rail-management proposal submitted by TVRM and entered into the “Agreement 
for Management of Rail Yard and Tracks (Enterprise South Industrial Park)” 
effective as of April 1, 2008 (the “2008 Agreement”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and TVRM executed a First Amendment to the 2008 Agreement 

dated January 10, 2011, to extend the term of the 2008 Agreement through 
March 31, 2016, and to provide for further automatic three (3) year extensions 
(with the 2008 Agreement and the First Amendment being herein referred to 
collectively as the “Original Agreements”); and  

 
WHEREAS, in the time since the Original Agreements became effective on April 1, 2008, 

Volkswagen of America (“VW”) has completed the construction of an 
automobile assembly plant within ESIP, and presently uses freight services 



 

 

provided under the Original Agreements on a regular basis; additionally, other 
manufacturers and suppliers within ESIP have increased the demand for freight 
services within ESIP, with additional growth expected as VW contemplates the 
expansion of its facility; and  

 
WHEREAS, TVRM has been providing services under the Original Agreements since 2008 

and has successfully managed and maintained the rail operations within ESIP as 
needed to serve the VW automobile manufacturing facility and other industrial 
facilities which have located to or expanded operations within ESIP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and TVRM desire to modify and extend the Original Agreements in 

order to provide a long-term structure for TVRM to assume expanded 
responsibilities for operation, management, and maintenance of the rail network 
at ESIP, as well as the responsibility for the future construction of rail 
improvements which will be needed to handle the expected additional volume 
and logistics management arising from growth of the VW facility and other 
facilities located within ESIP; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and TVRM desire to enter into this Amended and Restated 

Agreement to set forth their full and complete understanding regarding the 
revised rights and obligations of each party with respect to management of rail 
operations at ESIP.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the amendment and extension of the 
contract with Tennessee Valley Railroad Museum, Inc. for management of the rail yard and 
tracks at the Enterprise South Industrial Park and authorizes the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution.   
 
BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.   
 

  
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



12842667v17  16651-0003 

AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT 
FOR MANAGEMENT OF RAIL YARD AND TRACKS 

(ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK) 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT is entered into as of the ___ day 
of ______________, 2015, by HAMILTON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Tennessee (“County”) and the TENNESSEE VALLEY RAILROAD MUSEUM, a Tennessee 
not-for-profit public benefit corporation (“TVRM”).  

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, the County, together with the City of Chattanooga (“City”), owns and 
operates the Enterprise South Industrial Park in Chattanooga (the “ESIP”); and  

WHEREAS, the County, through its interlocal agreement with the City of Chattanooga 
regarding the management of ESIP, is responsible for overseeing the operation and maintenance 
of the railroad network located within ESIP, which is used to provide railcar storage and freight 
services for businesses located within ESIP; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Request for Proposal issued for experienced railroad operators 
to manage all aspects of the rail network at ESIP, and by Resolution approved by the Hamilton 
County Commission on March 19, 2008, the County approved the rail-management proposal 
submitted by TVRM and entered into the “Agreement for Management of Rail Yard and Tracks 
(Enterprise South Industrial Park)” effective as of April 1, 2008 (the “2008 Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the County and TVRM executed a First Amendment to the 2008 Agreement 
dated January 10, 2011, to extend the term of the 2008 Agreement through March 31, 2016, and 
to provide for further automatic three (3) year extensions (with the 2008 Agreement and the First 
Amendment being herein referred to collectively as the “Original Agreements”); and  

WHEREAS, in the time since the Original Agreements became effective on April 1, 
2008, Volkswagen of America (“VW”) has completed the construction of an automobile 
assembly plant within ESIP, and presently uses freight services provided under the Original 
Agreements on a regular basis; additionally, other manufacturers and suppliers within ESIP have 
increased the demand for freight services within ESIP, with additional growth expected as VW 
contemplates the expansion of its facility; and  

WHEREAS, TVRM has been providing services under the Original Agreements since 
2008 and has successfully managed and maintained the rail operations within ESIP as needed to 
serve the VW automobile manufacturing facility and other industrial facilities which have 
located to or expanded operations within ESIP; and 

WHEREAS, the County and TVRM desire to modify and extend the Original 
Agreements in order to provide a long-term structure for TVRM to assume expanded 
responsibilities for operation, management, and maintenance of the rail network at ESIP, as well 
as the responsibility for the future construction of rail improvements which will be needed to 
handle the expected additional volume and logistics management arising from growth of the VW 
facility and other facilities located within ESIP; and  



12842667v17  16651-0003 2 

WHEREAS, the County and TVRM desire to enter into this Amended and Restated 
Agreement to set forth their full and complete understanding regarding the revised rights and 
obligations of each party with respect to management of rail operations at ESIP;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth herein, the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, County and TVRM agree as follows:  

1. Term of Agreement. This Amended and Restated Agreement shall take effect 
upon execution. The present term of the Original Agreements is extended for three (3) months, to 
June 30, 2016, in order to coincide with the end of the County’s fiscal year; and thereafter, unless 
sooner terminated or extended as set forth herein, the term shall extend for thirty (30) years, 
through June 30, 2046.  TVRM may not enter into any contract with any entity requiring freight 
service within ESIP which extends beyond the termination date, without the prior written consent 
of the County. 

2. Scope of Responsibilities.  TVRM shall be fully responsible for management of 
all of the following operations within ESIP, and shall be obligated, except as expressly set forth 
in Subsections 2(c)(ii), 2(d), and 2(e) below, to pay for all operating expenses, improvements, 
maintenance, debt service and amortization relating thereto:  

(a) Railcar Storage and Repair. TVRM shall be in charge of all temporary and 
long-term storage of railcars within the rail facilities at ESIP, including contractual relationships 
with all third parties requesting such storage, with these services to include the movement of 
railcars in and out of storage and the designation of locations where such storage shall take place 
from time to time.  In the event that repairs are needed to railcars located within ESIP, TVRM 
also shall have exclusive responsibility for such repairs, whether with its own employees and 
materials, or through subcontracts with other repair shops, as TVRM may determine from time to 
time in its discretion.  

(b) Rail Switching and Freight Operations.  TVRM shall be responsible for all 
rail operations within ESIP for receiving inbound freight from and delivering outbound freight to 
the Class I rail carriers which service ESIP (“switching”), and shall manage all internal switching 
and movement of all rail traffic within, entering, or leaving ESIP.  TVRM shall be responsible 
for the contractual relationships with all third parties which request rail switching and/or freight 
services within ESIP, either for receipt of rail shipments delivered into ESIP, or for the delivery 
to Class I railroads out of ESIP.  

(c) Track Infrastructure Maintenance and Repair.   

(i) Routine Maintenance.  TVRM shall be responsible at its expense 
for all maintenance, upkeep, and repair of all railroad track facilities at ESIP, including repairs to 
broken rails and ties; vegetation control along the tracks and rights-of-way; maintenance of track 
alignment and surface condition of track and rail bed; and all other routine maintenance 
obligations, with respect to all of the existing rail network as highlighted in yellow on the map 
attached as Exhibit A, and new rail facilities added by TVRM in the future under subsection 2(d) 
below. Such work will be undertaken in accordance with the following standards:   



12842667v17  16651-0003 3 

a) TVRM must perform sufficient maintenance and repairs to 
allow not less than fifteen (15) miles of the existing railroad lines within ESIP to be 
categorized as “Class I” track or higher in accordance with Federal Railroad 
Administration (“FRA”) standards, and shall comply with the same standard for all new 
track added within ESIP by TVRM under subsection 2(d) below. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if any track within ESIP is retired or transferred to third party ownership by an 
action of the City and County, the mileage thus retired or transferred will reduce the 
number of miles required to be repaired up to Class I status.   

b) Any track within ESIP which is classified as Class II under 
FRA standards at the time of this Agreement must be maintained at not less than Class II 
status for the duration of this Agreement.  

(ii) Extraordinary Repairs.  If any natural disaster or other catastrophic 
event beyond TVRM’s control (including, without exclusion, flood, earthquake, windstorm, fire, 
or act of war or terrorism) causes damage to the rail infrastructure of ESIP which requires repair 
or replacement beyond the routine maintenance and track upgrade obligations described in the 
foregoing subsection (i), and if such repair work in any single instance is expected to cost more 
than $250,000, TVRM and the County agree to cooperate in identifying the responsibility for 
undertaking such extraordinary repairs and the sources of funding for such repairs above the first 
Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) in costs, which shall be borne by TVRM (or 
the sources of which will be identified and procured by TVRM). In the event of the need for any 
extraordinary repair costing more than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) as 
contemplated in this section, to the extent that the County funds and performs such repair, this 
work will be undertaken by the County in accordance with all purchasing and contracting 
regulations and requirements which normally are applicable to the County’s procurement 
processes, including any portions of such work funded to the County through TVRM. If TVRM 
and the County agree that TVRM may undertake some of the repair and restoration work on its 
own accord up to the expenditure of $250,000, then County purchasing and contracting 
regulations may not be applicable, and such will be determined at the time, if ever, that such 
work becomes necessary.  

(d) Rail Network Expansion and Changes.   

(i) Responsibility for Expansion.  TVRM shall be responsible for 
adding, relocating, and/or closing rail lines within ESIP such as are necessary to provide freight-
hauling services for existing and new businesses located within ESIP, as such requirements shall 
be determined from time to time by TVRM.  TVRM shall also be responsible for all costs 
incurred in relation to such changes to the rail network within ESIP.  

(ii) Expansion Requested by County.  If at any time the County or an 
existing or prospective customer at ESIP requests construction of additional rail lines or 
extensions, but TVRM does not initially agree to undertake such addition or extension because 
of the expected cost and lack of certainty of recovering a sufficient financial return on its 
investment, the County and TVRM shall cooperate in performing an economic analysis of the 
costs of such work and the expected increase in revenue from switching services which are 
contractually committed because of such expansion. If the cost cannot be fully amortized over 



12842667v17  16651-0003 4 

the remaining term of this Agreement through increased revenue generated from the 
contractually-obligated new freight switching services arising because of such expansion at a rate 
which produces not less than a thirteen percent (13%) return to TVRM on the cost of such 
expansion, then the County can either extend the term of this Agreement to allow for full 
amortization by TVRM, or can pay for such expansion itself.  TVRM cannot be compelled to 
undertake track expansion at its own expense unless the guaranteed increase in revenue from 
new switching fees is sufficient to provide at least a thirteen percent (13%) return on said 
additional cost over the remaining term of this Agreement.  

(e) Cooperation on Funding Sources.  Hamilton County agrees to regularly 
cooperate with TVRM and/or with the Hamilton County Railroad Authority to identify, apply 
for, and pursue all available governmental or private grant funding which can be utilized for 
track and related infrastructure upgrade, expansion, maintenance, replacement, and repair at 
ESIP.   

3. Annual Fee Payable to County.   

(a) Minimum Annual Fee and 4% Gross Revenue Fee. TVRM agrees to pay 
an annual fee to the County equal to the greater of either: (i) $140,000, as increased from time to 
time in accordance with subsection (b) below (the “Minimum Annual Fee”); or (ii) four percent 
(4.0%) of the gross revenue determined on an accrual basis of TVRM from the services provided 
to ESIP customers under this Agreement, as adjusted in accordance with subsection (c) below 
(the “4% Gross Revenue Fee”). 

(b) Adjustments to Minimum Annual Fee. Commencing on July 1, 2017, and 
on each July 1 thereafter, the Minimum Annual Fee shall be adjusted annually by the change in 
the Consumer Price Index as published monthly by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, 
using the index for “United States; All Items; All Urban Consumers; 1982-1984 = 100” (not 
seasonally adjusted), or the official successor thereto (herein called the “CPI”). The CPI number 
to use each year in determining any adjustment to the Minimum Annual Fee shall be the CPI 
published for May of the current year, which shall be compared to the CPI published for May of 
the prior year (the index number for May is used because the May CPI publication is the last 
publication made available prior to the end of the fiscal year on June 30). By way of example, if 
the CPI published for May of 2017 is 246.073 and the CPI published for May of 2016 was 
241.087, then the increase in the CPI over that twelve (12) months is 246.043/241.087, or 1.021 
percent, and the adjustment to the Minimum Annual Fee for fiscal year 2017 would be $140,000 
x 1.021 percent, for a new Minimum Annual Fee for the 2017 fiscal year of $142,940. (Note that 
the CPI numbers used in this example are hypothetical; the actual numbers published for those 
months will be different. For a point of reference, the actual CPI number for September, 2015 is 
237.945.) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the annual increase in the CPI exceeds 3.5 percent in 
any year, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to determine whether the entire increase above 
3.5 percent will be applied to the increase of the Minimum Annual Fee for that year.  

This CPI-based change in the Minimum Annual Fee shall be cumulative, so that even if 
the 4% Gross Revenue Fee exceeds the Minimum Annual Fee for any given year, or over any 
period of successive years, a comparison between the Minimum Annual Fee, as adjusted over 
time, shall be made to the 4% Gross Revenue Fee for that year, and the higher amount shall be 



12842667v17  16651-0003 5 

used for the correct fee for that year. (Note that the Minimum Annual Fee for any upcoming 
fiscal year can always be determined by multiplying the original Minimum Annual Fee of 
$140,000 times the fraction determined by using the CPI for May of the current fiscal year as the 
numerator, and the CPI for May of 2016 as the denominator. See Example Five in Exhibit B for 
a detailed example of a possible future fee calculation.) 

(c) Adjustments to 4% Gross Revenue Fee. Beginning July 1, 2017, the 4% 
Gross Revenue Fee shall be calculated by determining all of the gross revenues of TVRM in the 
prior County fiscal year (determined on an accrual basis) as payment for services rendered in 
providing any of the services detailed in Section 2 of this Agreement to customers within ESIP, 
and deducting from such gross revenues (i) the amount of debt service (if any) paid by TVRM 
during that same twelve (12) month period (including both principal and interest) for capital 
improvements added within ESIP by TVRM after March 31, 2016, together with (ii) the 
depreciation amount, as determined on a straight line basis over the useful life of any new fixed-
improvement capital asset added to ESIP by TVRM under this Agreement, which are paid for 
out of TVRM’s resources without external borrowing.  

(d) Payment Schedule. Commencing with the County’s fiscal year beginning 
on July 1, 2016, TVRM shall pay the Minimum Annual Fee of $140,000 in equal monthly 
installments, in arrears at the end of each month. Following the end of the fiscal year on June 30, 
2017, TVRM will make a determination as to whether the 4% Gross Revenue Fee exceeds the 
Minimum Annual Fee for that period, and if it does, the amount of such excess shall be paid to 
the County before October 1, 2017. For each fiscal year thereafter, TVRM will be required to 
pay equal monthly installments based on the actual fee (whether the Minimum Annual Fee or the 
4% Gross Revenue Fee) payable for the preceding fiscal year, and a reconciliation of the amount 
owed will be determined prior to the following October 1. If TVRM during the fiscal year has 
paid an amount which is less than the appropriate Fee for such period, TVRM shall promptly 
make such reconciliation payment prior to that October 1, and if TVRM during the fiscal year 
has paid in excess of the required Fee, such excess shall be applied to the installment payments 
due for the then-current fiscal year. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or expires at 
the end of its term, the parties will reconcile any final calculation either with a payment by 
TVRM to the County of any additional Fee owed, or a refund by the County to TVRM with any 
excess payment already made.  

TVRM shall also be obligated as of December 31 each year (the midway point in the 
County’s fiscal year) to determine, based on gross revenues and capital costs to that date, 
whether the 4% Gross Revenue Fee payable for that year is likely to be greater or less than the 
estimated Fees which TVRM has been paying for the then-current fiscal year. TVRM shall 
provide such estimate to the County, and if the estimate shows that the total Fee required during 
that year is expected to fall below the total Fee presently being paid for that year, then TVRM 
shall adjust its monthly payment downward to match the expected total Fee payable for the year. 
Similarly, if such estimate shows that the total Fee required for the then-current year is likely to 
be higher than the total Fee presently being paid for that year, TVRM shall increase its monthly 
payments to match such higher estimates for the remaining months of the fiscal year.  

(e) Examples of Fee Calculations. See Exhibit B for detailed examples of 
future fee calculations.  



12842667v17  16651-0003 6 

4. Verification of Calculation of Fees Payable. TVRM shall continue throughout the 
term of this Agreement to engage an independent financial auditor, and TVRM will provide the 
County with annual audited financial statements. Additionally, TVRM will at a minimum 
provide quarterly operating and financial reports to the County which will include but not be 
limited to information relative to both switching and storage volumes and revenues in sufficient 
detail to substantiate fee calculations Subsection 3(c) and 3(d). TVRM shall also include in its 
reporting a calculation of the Minimum Annual Fee and the 4% Base Revenue Fee prior to the 
commencement of each fiscal year. Other reporting requirements may be identified during the 
term of the contract upon mutual agreement. The County shall have the right at any time during 
the term of this Agreement, but not more than once per year, to request TVRM’s auditor to 
provide an audited financial summary of TVRM’s calculation of the Fees calculated and paid by 
TVRM as required under the foregoing Section 3. TVRM’s auditors shall provide all relevant 
data to the County to demonstrate and verify the calculations made by TVRM, but shall be 
required (and allowed by the County) to keep as confidential all proprietary information 
regarding the individual customers of TVRM; the rates charged to and paid by such customers; 
and all contract terms between TVRM and its customers. The cost of such confirming work by 
TVRM’s auditor to provide information to the County shall be borne by TVRM. The County 
shall also have the right to engage its own independent auditor for these same purposes, but if the 
County chooses to do so, it shall bear the expense of retaining such independent auditor, unless 
the auditor finds that there is more than a two percent (2%) error in calculation of the Fee 
payable under Section 3 above, in which case the costs of this additional independent auditing 
work shall be borne by TVRM. Any independent auditor hired by the County shall also be 
required to enter into a Confidentiality Agreement with TVRM to retain as confidential all 
customer information and other proprietary information relevant to the operations of any 
individual customer or business at ESIP or any contractual relationship between such customers 
and TVRM.  

5. Salvage Value.  Any rail or other material removed from service on the ESIP rail 
network by TVRM which meets the then-current acceptable material or performance 
specifications will be used elsewhere in Hamilton County on any rail system eligible for support 
from the Hamilton County Rail Authority, or will be sold by TVRM with the proceeds used for 
further improvements either to the ESIP rail network or otherwise within Hamilton County on 
systems eligible for support from the Hamilton County Rail Authority.  The records of those 
transactions will be provided to the County for review at the time of any such transaction and 
incorporated in the reporting as required in Section 4.  

6. Participation in Future Financing by County.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to obligate the County, or any agency or entity of the County, to participate in any 
future financing or debt placement by TVRM in relation to the financing of improvements or 
operations by TVRM under this Agreement. Should the County at any point in the future choose 
to participate in any such financing, any loan or debt created in relation thereto will require a 
new and separate agreement detailing such funding.  

7. Ownership of Improvements.  All improvements made to the rail network will 
become the jointly-owned property of the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County, unless 
otherwise specifically agreed by the City and County in writing.  



12842667v17  16651-0003 7 

8. Property Taxes.  TVRM shall be responsible for payment of all property taxes on 
the rail infrastructure and rail equipment within ESIP which are assessed by the Tennessee 
Office of State Assessed Properties and owed to the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County. 

9. Notices.  All written notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 
sent by registered mail, by overnight courier with verified delivery, or by in-person delivery by 
hand to the persons and addresses set forth below, which may be modified from time to time by 
either party by delivery of written notice to the other party identifying the details of the new 
addressee and/or address for notice.  

Each written notice from TVRM to the County shall be sent to:  

Hamilton County Government 
ATTENTION: County Mayor 
625 Georgia Avenue, Suite 208 
Chattanooga, TN 37402  
Phone: 423-209-6105 
 

With a copy to Hamilton County Attorney’s Office:  

Hamilton County Government 
ATTENTION: County Attorney  
625 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204  
Chattanooga, TN 37402  
 

Each written notice to TVRM shall be sent to:   

 
Tennessee Valley Railroad Museum 
ATTENTION: President  
4119 Cromwell Road 
Chattanooga, TN 37421 
Phone:  423-894-8028 / Fax:  423-894-8029  
 

With a copy to:  

Miller & Martin PLLC 
ATTENTION:  Allen L. McCallie 
Suite 1200, Volunteer Bldg. 
832 Georgia Avenue 
Chattanooga, TN 37402-2289 
 

10. Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, 
in the event that County or TVRM shall be delayed or hindered in or prevented from the 
performance of any act (other than TVRM’s obligation to make any payment hereunder) by 
reason of strikes, lockouts, unavailability of materials, failure of power, restrictive governmental 
laws or regulations, riots, insurrections, the act, failure to act, or default of the other party, war, 



12842667v17  16651-0003 8 

terrorism, act of God, inclement weather, flood, landslide or earth movement, or any other reason 
beyond its reasonable control, then performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the 
delay and the period for the performance of such act shall be extended for a period equivalent to 
the period of such delay.  Lack of funds shall not be deemed to be a cause beyond control of 
either party. 

11. Insurance.  Throughout the term of the contract and in order to protect Hamilton 
County and the City of Chattanooga from any damage, loss, claim or litigation, including losses 
relating to environmental liability exposures, TVRM shall procure and maintain at its own 
expense, the following insurance coverages against claims for injuries or damages to property or 
other claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work or services 
provided hereunder by TVRM, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.   

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (if applicable and underwritten 
separately from Railroad Liability Insurance (RLI) policy):  $2,000,000 per occurrence for 
property damage and bodily injury covering the operation of employees and agents for the 
contracted operations as well as civil rights claims, preferably on an occurrence rather than a 
claims-made basis.  The insurance shall include coverage for the following:   

(i) Premise/Operations 

(ii) Explosion, Collapse and Underground Property Damage Hazard 
(only when applicable to the project) 

(iii) Products/Completed Operations 

(iv) Contractual 

(v) Independent Contractors 

(vi) Broad Form Property Coverage 

(vii) Personal Injury  

(b) Railroad Liability Insurance (RLI):  $15,000,000 per occurrence/ 
$30,000,000 Aggregate with Federal Employers’ Liability Act (FELA), or Tennessee Workers’ 
Compensation insurance, as may be required from TVRM and as detailed in subsection 11(d) 
below, no auto exclusion above underlying $1,000,000 primary coverage, foreign rolling stock 
and bill of lading coverage. 

(c) Business Automobile Liability Insurance:  $1,000,000 limit per accident 
for property damage and personal injury. 

(i) Owned/Leased Autos 

(ii) Non-owned Autos 

(iii) Hired Autos 



12842667v17  16651-0003 9 

(d) Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance:  Workers’ 
Compensation statutory limits as required by Tennessee.  This policy should include Employers’ 
Liability coverage for $1,000,000 per incident. 

(e) Subcontractors’ Railroad Protective Liability Insurance (RPLI):  TVRM is 
responsible for requiring that any/all subcontractors retained by TVRM for construction, 
maintenance, or miscellaneous work on infrastructure within ESIP, must obtain and maintain 
Railroad Protective Liability Insurance coverage during the term of any such project, with a 
policy providing coverage of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence/$10,000,000 aggregate, 
limited to the specific term, location, and nature of the project (ISO coverage form, preferably 
written on an occurrence basis).  Such policy shall name the County, City, and TVRM as 
additional insureds, and a copy of the Certificate of Insurance will be provided to the County 
prior to the commencement of any such work, for approval by the County Risk Manager.   

Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga shall be listed as an additional insured 
on the above required liability (CGL/RLI/RPLI) insurance policies.  A signed 
certificate of insurance shall evidence all policies and coverage shall not be cancelled 
without a minimum of thirty (30) days cancellation notice to the Hamilton County 
Risk Management Office.  All coverage shall be placed with Tennessee admitted 
insurers rated A10 or better by A.M. Best’s rating service or as approved by Hamilton 
County’s Risk Manager. 

12. Hold Harmless.  TVRM, and any subsidiaries or affiliates,  shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and pay all costs of defense and damages for Hamilton County, the City of 
Chattanooga, their agents and employees, against any and all liability damage, loss, claims, 
including Civil Rights Claims, and expenses which may accrue and be sustained by or threatened 
against the County or its Commissioners, the City or its Council Persons, agents and employees 
on account of any claim, suit or action made or brought against the County, the City, their 
agents, Commissioners, Councilors, or employees for the death of or injury to any person or 
property for damages to any and all persons or property arising in whole or in part from any and 
all acts or omissions, whether negligent or otherwise, of TVRM, the officers, agents, employees, 
authorized persons of TVRM and those on the premises with TVRM’s permission or for whose 
acts the County and/or City may be liable. 

 It is hereby agreed that this provision is intended to and does indemnify and hold 
harmless the County and the City of Chattanooga against any liability caused by or resulting 
from the acts of TVRM and subcontractors, its employees, officers, students, volunteers, or 
anyone for whose acts TVRM may be liable. 
 

13. Default; Termination for Cause.  If either party fails to perform its obligations 
hereunder, then the other party may terminate this Agreement after giving not less than ninety 
(90) days’ notice and right to cure, unless within such ninety (90) day period the event of default 
is corrected, or the defaulting party has commenced cure of the default and pursues such cure 
diligently until completion, even if such completion shall require more than ninety (90) days.  
Events of Default include but are not limited to: 

(a) The occurrence of insolvency in respect of a party; 



12842667v17  16651-0003 10 

(b) The failure to effect and maintain any insurance required to be effected 
and maintained by TVRM in accordance with this Agreement; 

(c) Where any Fee (whether Minimum Annual Fee or 4% Gross Revenue 
Fee) or other cost payable by TVRM in accordance with this Agreement is in arrears and unpaid 
for thirty (30) Business Days after they have become due and payable.  

14. Conflicts of Interest. TVRM warrants that no amount shall be paid directly or 
indirectly to an employee or official of Hamilton County as wages, compensation, gifts or other 
valuable consideration in exchange for giving favorable consideration, approval, or other 
advocacy on behalf of TVRM for the award of this Agreement, or for any other involvement in 
the performance of this Agreement or any services to be provided under this Agreement. TVRM 
and its officers shall annually execute an agreed upon Conflict of Interest form to assure 
continuing compliance with this section.  

15. Nondiscrimination.  The County and TVRM hereby agree, warrant, and assure 
that no person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise 
subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Agreement or in the employment practices 
of the County or TVRM on the grounds of disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, or any other classification protected by Federal, Tennessee State constitutional, or 
statutory law. 

16. County Liability.  The County shall have no liability except as specifically 
provided in this Agreement. 

17. State and Federal Compliance.  TVRM and the County shall comply with all 
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations in the performance of this Agreement. 

18. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. TVRM agrees that it will be subject to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise under this 
Agreement. 

19. Completeness.  This Agreement is complete and contains the entire understanding 
between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and 
conditions of the parties' agreement. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior 
understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating 
hereto, whether written or oral. 

20. Severability.  If any terms and conditions of this Agreement are held to be invalid 
or unenforceable as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be affected 
thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. To this end, the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement are declared severable. 

21. Material Change.  “Material Change” means a change in federal, state, or local 
taxes, or a Change in Law; or a material change in the business and economic assumptions which 
underlie TVRM’s agreement to undertake the obligations set forth in this contract, primarily 



12842667v17  16651-0003 11 

referencing a material reduction in the volumes of railcar storage, railcar switching, or other rail 
freight services requested from TVRM by customers within ESIP. 

(a) Adjustment for a Material Change.  If at any time after the date of this 
Agreement a Material Change occurs which affects TVRM in performing its obligations under 
this Agreement, TVRM may notify the County giving details of the Material Change. 

(b) Negotiation in Good Faith.  Within ten (10) business days after receipt of a 
notice the parties shall meet and negotiate in good faith any appropriate adjustments to this 
Agreement in order to return both parties to the positions they would have been, had it not been 
for the Material Change.   

22. Obligation to Continue Performance.  TVRM shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement, pending final resolution of any request for relief, adjustment for 
Material Change, claim, appeal, or action arising or relating to the Agreement. 

23. Assignment to Affiliated Entity.  TVRM shall have the right to assign its rights 
and obligations under this Agreement (and any amendment thereto) to any subsidiary or affiliate 
entity of TVRM, provided that such entity is owned and/or majority controlled by TVRM upon 
prior notification and by mutual agreement in writing.   

24. Future Modification.  This Agreement can be modified by mutual agreement of 
TVRM and the County.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on the day first 
above written.  

HAMILTON COUNTY, TN 
 
By:         
Title:         
 
 
TENNESSEE VALLEY RAILROAD MUSEUM  
 
By:         
Title:         

  



12842667v17  16651-0003 12 

EXHIBIT A 

 

  



12842667v17  16651-0003 13 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

EXAMPLES OF CALCULATION OF ANNUAL FEE 
 

Example One: 

If after the close of the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2017, it is determined that the 4% 
Gross Revenue Fee as calculated in arrears for that fiscal year would require a total payment of 
$152,000, and if during that period TVRM had paid only the $140,000 Minimum Annual Fee, 
then TVRM would be required to pay the difference (in this example, $12,000) before October 1, 
2017. Also at the beginning of the County’s fiscal year on July 1, 2017, if it is determined that 
the CPI adjustment to the Minimum Annual Fee for that upcoming fiscal year is 2.1 percent, the 
Minimum Annual Fee for that fiscal year would thus be determined as ($140,000 x 1.021) = 
$142,940. Because the 4% Gross Revenue Fee for the previous fiscal year is higher than the 
newly-calculated Minimum Annual Fee for the present fiscal year, the monthly payments to be 
made in arrears for the fiscal year 2017/2018 would be $152,000 ÷ 12 = $12,666.67 per month.  

Example Two: 

Assume using the same facts as in Example One, except as of December 31, 2017, 
TVRM determines that there has been a reduction in freight traffic at ESIP during the first six (6) 
months of the fiscal year, creating the likelihood that the 4% Gross Revenue Fee for that fiscal 
year will fall below the $152,000 paid for the previous fiscal year. In such circumstance, TVRM 
is entitled to adjust the monthly fee downward to the level estimated to be payable for the 
remainder of the fiscal year, but such payments cannot be set at a rate lower than the annual total 
of $142,940 that would be owed for that fiscal year using the adjusted Minimum Annual Fee for 
that year.  

Example Three: 

Assume that after the end of the tenth (10th) year, the CPI-based increase in the Minimum 
Annual Fee over that ten (10) year period has raised the Minimum Annual Fee to $160,000. Also 
assume at the end of that fiscal year, the gross revenue generated from operations at ESIP totals 
$4.8 million, and that TVRM has financed $1 million in capital improvements with a loan 
payable on a twenty (20) year amortization schedule at five percent (5%) interest, and requiring 
annual amortization payments totaling $79,200 per year. Under these facts, the Minimum Annual 
Fee of $160,000 would be compared to the 4% Gross Revenue Fee, calculated by deducting the 
debt service amortization payment of $79,200 from the total gross revenue of $4,800,000, 
leaving net revenue of $4,720,800. At the percentage rate of four percent (4%), the 4% Gross 
Revenue Fee for that fiscal year would total $188,832, which would be then established as the 
correct Fee to be paid for that fiscal year, since the 4% Gross Revenue Fee exceeds the Minimum 
Annual Fee for that year. That amount would also serve as the basis for calculation of the Fee for 
the next fiscal year.  



12842667v17  16651-0003 14 

Example Four: 

Assume all of the same facts as Example Three, except that in this same year, TVRM 
also acquires electronic signaling equipment with a useful life of five (5) years, and pays for that 
purchase with $200,000 in cash, and with no additional borrowing. The calculation of the 4% 
Gross Revenue Fee would be the same as in Example Three, except that the total expense for this 
equipment ($200,000) would be allocated over its useful life of five (5) years at $40,000 per 
year. Accordingly, the gross revenue would be reduced not only by the $79,200 debt service, but 
also by the $40,000 in depreciation of the new signaling equipment, leaving net revenue of 
$4,680,800, which at four percent (4%) would yield a 4% Gross Revenue Fee for that year of 
$187,232, which would still be in excess of the Minimum Annual Fee for that year of $160,000, 
and would thus be the appropriate Fee to be paid for that year.  

Example Five: 

Assume that for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 2019 and running through June 30, 
2030, the volume of business conducted by TVRM within ESIP is very good, resulting in the 4% 
Gross Revenue Fee exceeding the Minimum Annual Fee each year, meaning that TVRM 
payments are thus made to the County throughout that period based on the 4% Gross Revenue 
Fee. Then, in the fiscal year for 2031, the volume of work and the revenue generated by the 
services provided by TVRM within ESIP fall dramatically, for whatever reason. The Minimum 
Annual Fee for the 2031 fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2030, can be determined by 
multiplying the original Minimum Annual Fee of $140,000 by a fraction, the numerator of which 
is the CPI for May of 2030, and the denominator of which is the CPI for May of 2016. If the 4% 
Gross Revenue Fee falls to a point where it is then below the Minimum Annual Fee projected for 
the 2031 fiscal year, then the Minimum Annual Fee would become the correct fee to pay for 
fiscal year 2031.  



No. 1115-24 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF RIGHTS-
OF-WAY REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE OOLTEWAH-
GEORGETOWN ROAD, MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD AND BLANCHE ROAD 
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,900 OF WHICH 80 
PERCENT OF THE COST WILL BE REIMBURSED TO HAMILTON COUNTY BY THE 
TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 20 PERCENT MATCH TO 
BE PAID BY HAMILTON COUNTY. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 712-25 was approved by this Legislative Body on July 18, 

2012, for Agreement No. 120084 with the Tennessee Department of 
Transportation for the improvement of the intersection at Ooltewah-
Georgetown Road, Mountain View Road and Blanche Road; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in order to facilitate construction of intersection improvements, rights-of-way 

acquisitions from Bobby Joe and Norma K. Frazier ($9,350), Edward V. and 
Billie J. Harvey ($1.650) Tri-Community Volunteer Fire Department c/o 
Duane Pitts, Fire Chief ($12,900)  are required; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the rights-of-way documents and costs have been reviewed by representatives 

of the Hamilton County Real Property Office and are in accordance with the 
requirements of the State of Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Eighty (80) percent of costs will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the 

Tennessee Department of Transportation per agreement No. 120084 and 20 
percent match to be paid by Hamilton County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION  
ASSEMBLED: 
 

That authorization of payment for the acquisition of rights-of-way necessary for 
construction of the Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, Mountain View Road and 



 

 

Blanche Road intersection improvements is approved in the amount of $23,900 
of which 80 percent will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation and 20 percent match paid by Hamilton County. 
Transportation and 20 percent match paid by Hamilton County. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1115-25 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT A $460,000 
LOCAL PARKS AND RECREATION FUND GRANT FROM THE TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION TO DEVELOP HORSE 
TRAILS AT ENTERPRISE SOUTH NATURE PARK AND TO SIGN ANY AND ALL 
GRANT-RELATED CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS,  TDEC has awarded Hamilton County an LPRF grant to build the County’s 

first public horse trails in Enterprise South Nature Park; and, 
 
WHEREAS,    The project will include 10 miles of trails as well as parking and waterless 

restrooms; and,  
 
WHEREAS,    The $460,000 grant includes a $230,000 match which will be shared equally 

 by the City and County; and, 
 
WHEREAS,    County matching funds will come from bond funds and are contingent upon 

City matching funds; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  The horse trails project received strong public support during the park’s 

original master planning process and again during preparation of the grant 
application; and 

  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to accept a $460,000 Local Parks and 
Recreation Fund grant from the Tennessee Department of Environment and 
Conservation to develop horse trails at Enterprise South Nature Park and to 
sign any and all grant-related contracts and documents.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 



 

 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1115-26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRATER FORD, INC. FOR MID-SIZE AND SMALL 
UTILITY VEHICLES FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for mid-size 4X4 utility 

vehicles for the Assessor of Property (2), Sheriff’s Office (2) and Emergency Services 
(1) and small 4X4 utility vehicles for Building Inspection (1) and Enterprise South 
Nature Park (1) and 4X2 small utility vehicles for Chester Frost Park (1) and the 
Health Department (1); and,  

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Prater Ford, Inc. amounting to $27,596.74 for the mid-size utility vehicle, 

$22,665.74 for the small 4X4 utility vehicle and $19,426.74 for the small 4X2 utility 
vehicle was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Prater Ford, Inc. for mid-size and small utility vehicles is hereby accepted, said bid 
being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contacts 
necessary to implement this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



Replacement Vehicles: 

Health Department: 
2008 Chevrolet Equinox 
Tag#: GY-6945 
Mileage: 192,304 
 
Building Inspection: 
2000 Jeep Cherokee 
Tag#: GT-8672 
Mileage: 139,859 
 
Recreation - Chester Frost Park: 
2001 Chevrolet Impala 
Tag#: GV-5602 
Mileage: 157,777 
 
Recreation – Enterprise South Nature Park: 
2002 Ford F-150 
Tag#: GV-1642 
Mileage: 155,000 
 
Emergency Services: 
2004 Chevrolet Impala 
Tag#: GV-2746 
Mileage: 166,546 
 
Assessor of Property: 
2007 Ford Explorer 
Tag#: GY-0627 
Mileage: 195,000 
 
2008 Ford Explorer 
Tag#: GY-6996 
Mileage: 218,000 
 
Sheriff’s Office: 
2008 Chevrolet Impala 
Tag#: GY-7984 
Mileage: 168,876 
 
2008 Chevrolet Impala 
Tag#: GY-5467 
Mileage: 177,289 
 
 













































No. 1115-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MIDDLE TENNESSEE TURF, INC. AND 
SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, 
BEGINNING DECEMBER 4, 2015, THROUGH DECEMBER 3, 2016, FOR SOD FOR THE 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing for sod for the Recreation Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and SiteOne Landscape Supply were 

considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and SiteOne Landscape Supply for one (1) year 
contract pricing, beginning December 4, 2015, through December 3, 2016, for sod for the 
Recreation Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, 
and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 1115-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF RAINES BROTHERS, INC. FOR THE 
COURTHOUSE SOUTH ENTRANCE MARBLE STEP LANDING RENOVATION 
AMOUNTING TO $58,890.00 FOR THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for the Courthouse 

south entrance marble step landing renovation for the Maintenance 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Raines Brothers, Inc. amounting to $58,890.00 was the only bid 

received, but said bid is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Raines Brothers, Inc. for the Courthouse south entrance marble step landing 
renovation amounting to $58,890.00 for the Maintenance Department is hereby accepted, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 















































No. 1115-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF Z-BAND, INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT 
PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 18, 2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 17, 2016, FOR 
VIDEO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit 

pricing for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Z-Band, Inc. was the only bid received, but said bid is deemed 

reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid Z-Band, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning November 18, 2015, through 
November 17, 2016, for video distribution equipment for the Telecommunications Department 
is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 1115-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF EPB FIBER OPTICS FOR INTERNET 
CONNECTIVITY FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 1, 2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2018, 
WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR AN ADDITIONAL THREE YEARS ON AN ANNUAL 
BASIS, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal was received in response to public advertisement for Internet Connectivity 

for Hamilton County Offices; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the contract will be for a period of three (3) years, with the option to renew for three 

(3) additional one (1) year terms; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this proposal addressed a wide range of connectivity solutions that will benefit 

Hamilton County offices; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal from EPB Fiber Optics was the only proposal received, but said proposal 

is deemed reasonable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal of EPB Fiber Optics is hereby accepted, said proposal being the best proposal 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1115-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT  WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 
OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $416,700.00 TO PROVIDE SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE 
AND HIV EDUCATION, PREVENTION AND CONTROL SERVICES  IN HAMILTON COUNTY,  FOR A 
TIME PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016.    
 
WHEREAS, sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV continue to be a public health threat in 

Hamilton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, appropriate and timely education, diagnosis, treatment and contact identification and 

treatment has been proven to be an effective means of controlling these diseases; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department provides this service to persons 

in Hamilton County; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health provides funding to support this service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health reduced required activity in this contract’s Scope 

of Service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the amount of $416,700.00  for the 
provision of Sexually Transmitted Disease and HIV Education, Prevention and Control Services for the 
residents of Hamilton County for a time period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 













































































No. 1115-32 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF YOUNG ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. FOR AN 
EMERGENCY GENERATOR ADDITION FOR THE SEQUOYAH HEALTH CENTER 
AMOUNTING TO $91,617.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for an emergency generator 

addition for the Sequoyah Health Center; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Young Electric Company, Inc. amounting to $91,617.00 for the 

emergency generator addition and alternate one was considered to be the lowest and 
best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, $73,617.00 of the cost will be paid through the Public Health Emergency 

Preparedness Grant and the remaining $18,000.00 is budgeted in the Health 
Department’s Capital Outlay Fund; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Young Electric Company, Inc. for an emergency generator addition for the Sequoyah 
Health Center amounting to $91,617.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1115-33 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A GRANT SUPPLEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $255,012.00 FROM THE 
HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (HRSA) AND TO INCREASE THE EXPENSE AND 
REVENUE BUDGETS BY $255,012.00. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is a recipient of a HRSA grant 

to operate the Homeless Healthcare Center (HHC), and   
 
WHEREAS,  HRSA provides Expanded Services (ES) supplemental funds to support increased 

access to preventive and primary health care services at existing Health Center 
Program grantee sites, and 

 
WHEREAS,  HRSA identified $255,012.00 of these ES funds to expand services at the HHC, and  
 
WHEREAS,  the management of the HHC has determined that clients of that facility can benefit 

from expanded dental, social counseling and optometry services, and that all 
programs provided there can benefit from additional quality management and 
support services work, and  

 
WHEREAS,  the HHC can efficiently increase dental, social counseling and quality management 

services by increasing three part time positions to full time positions and adding a 
part time support services position, and 

 
WHEREAS,  the management has identified optometry services on a contract basis. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to accept a grant supplement in the amount of $255,012.00 
from the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) and to increase the expense and 
revenue budgets by $255,012.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHERE RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTIONS TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1115-34 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO HIGHWAY 58 VOLUNTEER FIRE 
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative Body to 

make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and civic 

organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their nonprofit 
work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston desires to allocate Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) to  

Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department to assist with the purchase of equipment and supplies; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Nine, be 
appropriated to Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department to assist with the purchase of equipment and supplies. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are appropriated shall 
file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a copy of an annual report of 
its business affairs and transactions and the proposed use of the County’s funds.  Such 
annual report shall be prepared and certified by the chief financial officer of such 
nonprofit organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general welfare of 
the residents of the County. 

 
 



 

 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County in 

providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in compliance with 
Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and all other laws which may 
apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations and so this 
is made subject to compliance with any and all of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1115-35 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 18, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TRANSFERING OF $34,000.00 IN 
DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO COUNTY COMMISSION 
DISTRICT FIVE TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT SEVEN, AND THE 
TRANSFERING OF A LIKE AMOUNT IN GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT SEVEN TO 
COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT FIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, by adoption of the 2015-2016 fiscal year budget, this county 
legislative body has appropriated certain funds from the General 
Fund operating budget for expenditure within each of the nine (9) 
County Commission Districts (General Fund Discretionary Funds), 
and Hamilton County (“County”) creates and maintains a separate 
expenditure within said budget known as ”General Fund 
discretionary funds”, from which each County Commissioner may 
make appropriations within their respective District or otherwise; and  

 
WHEREAS, by adoption of resolution 714-15 in July 2014, this county legislative 

body appropriated certain bond funds for expenditure within each of 
the nine (9) County Commission Districts in the form of eligible 
public works capital expenditures by the issuance of bonds 
(Discretionary Bond Funds), and Hamilton County (“County”) 
creates and maintains a separate expenditure within said bond fund 
known as ”discretionary bond funds”, from which each County 
Commissioner may make appropriations within their respective 
District for public works capital projects that meet the requirements 
of TCA 9-21-105; and  

 
WHEREAS,  recent guidance as received from the Office of the Comptroller for 

the State of Tennessee has questioned the County’s past practices of 
expending General Fund Discretionary Funds for use on behalf of the 
Hamilton County Department of Education, thereby prohibiting this 



 

 

county legislative body’s past practice of expending General Fund 
discretionary funds on Department of Education related projects; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Seventh District County Commissioner Sabrena Turner-Smedley 

desires to appropriate $34,000.00 for the construction of public 
restrooms within the sports stadium at East Hamilton High School, 
but has no Discretionary Bond funds available although said amount 
remains within her General Fund Discretionary Fund allotment; and  

 
WHEREAS, It is permissible to spend bond funds on school related capital 

projects that meet the requirements of TCA 9-21-105 related to the 
expenditure of bond funds; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Fifth District County Commissioner Greg Beck has in excess of 

$34,000.00 within his allotted Discretionary Bond funds (for District 
Five) which he is willing to transfer to County Commission District 
Seven for the purpose of constructing said public restrooms, in 
exchange for a like amount of General Fund Discretionary Funds 
being transferred in the County’s said budget from District Seven’s 
General Fund discretionary funds to District Five’s General Fund 
discretionary fund allocation; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said budgetary readjustment is within the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY: 
 

That of those funds allocated to County Commission District Five and designated as 
“discretionary bond funds”, in the amount of Thirty Four Thousand Dollars 
($34,000.00), shall be reallocated to County Commission District Seven’s discretionary 
bond funds; and in like manner, Thirty Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000.00) presently 
allotted to County Commission District Seven as “General Fund discretionary funds” 
be reallocated to County Commission District Five’s General Fund discretionary 
account for further allocation as said County Commissioner may direct. 
 

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 18, 2015 

  
Date 

 


	11--18-15 Public Agenda Revised
	1115-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - October 28, 2015 _1937_10-28-15 Recessed
	1115-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - October 28, 2015 _1938_10-28-15 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	1115-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - November 4, 2015 _1939_11-04-15 Regular
	1115-_S_Report_Report Quarterly Investment Report_1921_Inv Rept
	1115-_S_Report_Order of Designation Planning Commission - Todd Leamon November 9, 2015_1928_Order of Designation Todd Leamon November 9 2015
	1115-_S_Report_Unaudited Financial Reports ending June 30 2015
	1115-16_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1945_1115-_R_Bill Knowles_Notary
	1115-16_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1945_1115-_S_Bill Knowles_Notary
	1115-17A_R_Zoning_Zoning_1896_121 A
	1115-17A_S_Zoning_Zoning_1896_0911_001
	1115-17B_R_Zoning_Zoning_1897_121B
	1115-17B_S_Zoning_Zoning_1897_0911_001
	1115-18_R_Zoning_Zoning_1898_122
	1115-18_S_Zoning_Zoning_1898_0912_001
	1115-19_R_Sam Mairs_Transfer of security position from Juvenile Court Judge to Sheriff_1942_JuvJdg Resolution
	1115-20_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the City of Chattanooga for the South Chattanooga Youth and Family Development Center_1923_Comm Mackey YFD Center
	1115-21_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the Tides Foundation for the NAACP_1943_Comm Mackey Tides
	1115-21_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the Tides Foundation for the NAACP_1943_DOC110515
	1115-22_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for the Tides Foundation for the NAACP_1944_Comm Beck Tides
	1115-22_S_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for the Tides Foundation for the NAACP_1944_DOC110515
	1115-23_R_Rheubin Taylor_TVRM Contract Amendment and Extension_1931_TVRM Contract Extention Resolution
	1115-23_S_Rheubin Taylor_TVRM Contract Amendment and Extension_1931_12842667-v17-TVRM-Amended  Restated Agmt for Mgmt of Rail Yard  Tracks   Final
	1. Term of Agreement. This Amended and Restated Agreement shall take effect upon execution. The present term of the Original Agreements is extended for three (3) months, to June 30, 2016, in order to coincide with the end of the County’s fiscal year; ...
	2. Scope of Responsibilities.  TVRM shall be fully responsible for management of all of the following operations within ESIP, and shall be obligated, except as expressly set forth in Subsections 2(c)(ii), 2(d), and 2(e) below, to pay for all operating...
	(a) Railcar Storage and Repair. TVRM shall be in charge of all temporary and long-term storage of railcars within the rail facilities at ESIP, including contractual relationships with all third parties requesting such storage, with these services to i...
	(b) Rail Switching and Freight Operations.  TVRM shall be responsible for all rail operations within ESIP for receiving inbound freight from and delivering outbound freight to the Class I rail carriers which service ESIP (“switching”), and shall manag...
	(c) Track Infrastructure Maintenance and Repair.
	(i) Routine Maintenance.  TVRM shall be responsible at its expense for all maintenance, upkeep, and repair of all railroad track facilities at ESIP, including repairs to broken rails and ties; vegetation control along the tracks and rights-of-way; mai...
	a) TVRM must perform sufficient maintenance and repairs to allow not less than fifteen (15) miles of the existing railroad lines within ESIP to be categorized as “Class I” track or higher in accordance with Federal Railroad Administration (“FRA”) stan...
	b) Any track within ESIP which is classified as Class II under FRA standards at the time of this Agreement must be maintained at not less than Class II status for the duration of this Agreement.

	(ii) Extraordinary Repairs.  If any natural disaster or other catastrophic event beyond TVRM’s control (including, without exclusion, flood, earthquake, windstorm, fire, or act of war or terrorism) causes damage to the rail infrastructure of ESIP whic...

	(d) Rail Network Expansion and Changes.
	(i) Responsibility for Expansion.  TVRM shall be responsible for adding, relocating, and/or closing rail lines within ESIP such as are necessary to provide freight-hauling services for existing and new businesses located within ESIP, as such requireme...
	(ii) Expansion Requested by County.  If at any time the County or an existing or prospective customer at ESIP requests construction of additional rail lines or extensions, but TVRM does not initially agree to undertake such addition or extension becau...

	(e) Cooperation on Funding Sources.  Hamilton County agrees to regularly cooperate with TVRM and/or with the Hamilton County Railroad Authority to identify, apply for, and pursue all available governmental or private grant funding which can be utilize...

	3. Annual Fee Payable to County.
	(a) Minimum Annual Fee and 4% Gross Revenue Fee. TVRM agrees to pay an annual fee to the County equal to the greater of either: (i) $140,000, as increased from time to time in accordance with subsection (b) below (the “Minimum Annual Fee”); or (ii) fo...
	(b) Adjustments to Minimum Annual Fee. Commencing on July 1, 2017, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Minimum Annual Fee shall be adjusted annually by the change in the Consumer Price Index as published monthly by the United States Bureau of Labor Sta...
	(c) Adjustments to 4% Gross Revenue Fee. Beginning July 1, 2017, the 4% Gross Revenue Fee shall be calculated by determining all of the gross revenues of TVRM in the prior County fiscal year (determined on an accrual basis) as payment for services ren...
	(d) Payment Schedule. Commencing with the County’s fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2016, TVRM shall pay the Minimum Annual Fee of $140,000 in equal monthly installments, in arrears at the end of each month. Following the end of the fiscal year on Jun...
	(e) Examples of Fee Calculations. See Exhibit B for detailed examples of future fee calculations.

	4. Verification of Calculation of Fees Payable. TVRM shall continue throughout the term of this Agreement to engage an independent financial auditor, and TVRM will provide the County with annual audited financial statements. Additionally, TVRM will at...
	5. Salvage Value.  Any rail or other material removed from service on the ESIP rail network by TVRM which meets the then-current acceptable material or performance specifications will be used elsewhere in Hamilton County on any rail system eligible fo...
	6. Participation in Future Financing by County.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to obligate the County, or any agency or entity of the County, to participate in any future financing or debt placement by TVRM in relation to the financing ...
	7. Ownership of Improvements.  All improvements made to the rail network will become the jointly-owned property of the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County, unless otherwise specifically agreed by the City and County in writing.
	8. Property Taxes.  TVRM shall be responsible for payment of all property taxes on the rail infrastructure and rail equipment within ESIP which are assessed by the Tennessee Office of State Assessed Properties and owed to the City of Chattanooga and H...
	9. Notices.  All written notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be sent by registered mail, by overnight courier with verified delivery, or by in-person delivery by hand to the persons and addresses set forth below, which may be modi...
	Each written notice from TVRM to the County shall be sent to:
	With a copy to Hamilton County Attorney’s Office:
	Each written notice to TVRM shall be sent to:
	With a copy to:

	10. Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, in the event that County or TVRM shall be delayed or hindered in or prevented from the performance of any act (other than TVRM’s obligation to make any payment hereund...
	11. UInsurance.U  Throughout the term of the contract and in order to protect Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga from any damage, loss, claim or litigation, including losses relating to environmental liability exposures, TVRM shall procure an...
	(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (if applicable and underwritten separately from Railroad Liability Insurance (RLI) policy):  $2,000,000 per occurrence for property damage and bodily injury covering the operation of employees and agents for ...
	(i) Premise/Operations
	(ii) Explosion, Collapse and Underground Property Damage Hazard (only when applicable to the project)
	(iii) Products/Completed Operations
	(iv) Contractual
	(v) Independent Contractors
	(vi) Broad Form Property Coverage
	(vii) Personal Injury

	(b) Railroad Liability Insurance (RLI):  $15,000,000 per occurrence/ $30,000,000 Aggregate with Federal Employers’ Liability Act (FELA), or Tennessee Workers’ Compensation insurance, as may be required from TVRM and as detailed in subsection 11(d) bel...
	(c) Business Automobile Liability Insurance:  $1,000,000 limit per accident for property damage and personal injury.
	(i) Owned/Leased Autos
	(ii) Non-owned Autos
	(iii) Hired Autos

	(d) Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance:  Workers’ Compensation statutory limits as required by Tennessee.  This policy should include Employers’ Liability coverage for $1,000,000 per incident.
	(e) Subcontractors’ Railroad Protective Liability Insurance (RPLI):  TVRM is responsible for requiring that any/all subcontractors retained by TVRM for construction, maintenance, or miscellaneous work on infrastructure within ESIP, must obtain and mai...

	12. Hold Harmless.  TVRM, and any subsidiaries or affiliates,  shall indemnify, hold harmless and pay all costs of defense and damages for Hamilton County, the City of Chattanooga, their agents and employees, against any and all liability damage, loss...
	13. Default; Termination for Cause.  If either party fails to perform its obligations hereunder, then the other party may terminate this Agreement after giving not less than ninety (90) days’ notice and right to cure, unless within such ninety (90) da...
	(a) The occurrence of insolvency in respect of a party;
	(b) The failure to effect and maintain any insurance required to be effected and maintained by TVRM in accordance with this Agreement;
	(c) Where any Fee (whether Minimum Annual Fee or 4% Gross Revenue Fee) or other cost payable by TVRM in accordance with this Agreement is in arrears and unpaid for thirty (30) Business Days after they have become due and payable.

	14. Conflicts of Interest. TVRM warrants that no amount shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Hamilton County as wages, compensation, gifts or other valuable consideration in exchange for giving favorable consideration, ap...
	15. Nondiscrimination.  The County and TVRM hereby agree, warrant, and assure that no person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the performance of this Agreement or in the emp...
	16. County Liability.  The County shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Agreement.
	17. State and Federal Compliance.  TVRM and the County shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations in the performance of this Agreement.
	18. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee. TVRM agrees that it will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may ...
	19. Completeness.  This Agreement is complete and contains the entire understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions of the parties' agreement. This Agreement supersedes any an...
	20. USeverabilityU.  If any terms and conditions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect. To this end, ...
	21. Material Change.  “Material Change” means a change in federal, state, or local taxes, or a Change in Law; or a material change in the business and economic assumptions which underlie TVRM’s agreement to undertake the obligations set forth in this ...
	(a) Adjustment for a Material Change.  If at any time after the date of this Agreement a Material Change occurs which affects TVRM in performing its obligations under this Agreement, TVRM may notify the County giving details of the Material Change.
	(b) Negotiation in Good Faith.  Within ten (10) business days after receipt of a notice the parties shall meet and negotiate in good faith any appropriate adjustments to this Agreement in order to return both parties to the positions they would have b...

	22. Obligation to Continue Performance.  TVRM shall proceed diligently with performance of this Agreement, pending final resolution of any request for relief, adjustment for Material Change, claim, appeal, or action arising or relating to the Agreement.
	23. Assignment to Affiliated Entity.  TVRM shall have the right to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement (and any amendment thereto) to any subsidiary or affiliate entity of TVRM, provided that such entity is owned and/or majority con...
	24. Future Modification.  This Agreement can be modified by mutual agreement of TVRM and the County.

	1115-24_R_Todd Leamon_Acquisition of Rights of Way_1924_Res. Intersection Ooltewah-Georgetown Mountain View
	1115-25_R_Dan Saieed_Enterprise South Nature Park Horse Trails Grant_1920_ESNP Horse Trails Res to Accept LPRF Grant
	1115-26_R_Albert Kiser_Mid Size and Small Utility Vehicles_1929_RES. UTILITY VEHICLES FOR VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS
	1115-26_S_Albert Kiser_Mid Size and Small Utility Vehicles_1929_Replacement Vehicles 2015 SUVs
	1115-26_S_Albert Kiser_Mid Size and Small Utility Vehicles_1929_Utility Vehicles
	1115-27_R_Don Allen_Fescue and Bermuda Sod Contract_1930_RES. SOD CONTRACT
	1115-27_S_Don Allen_Fescue and Bermuda Sod Contract_1930_Sod Contract
	1115-28_R_Don Allen_Courthouse South Entrance Marble Step Landing Renovation_1933_RES. COURTHOUSE MARBLE STEP LANDING RENOVATION
	1115-28_S_Don Allen_Courthouse South Entrance Marble Step Landing Renovation_1933_Marble Step Landing Renovation
	1115-29_R_Bill McGriff_Video Distribution Equipment_1925_RES. Z-BAND VIDEO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT
	1115-29_S_Bill McGriff_Video Distribution Equipment_1925_Video Distribution Equipment
	1115-30_R_Bill McGriff_Internet Connectivity_1941_RES. INTERNET CONNECTIVITY
	1115-30_S_Bill McGriff_Internet Connectivity_1941_Internet Connectivity
	1115-31_R_Becky Barnes_HIV STD Prevention and Control Services_1926_HIV STD 2015 Resolution
	1115-31_S_Becky Barnes_HIV STD Prevention and Control Services_1926_STD HIV Contract 2016
	1115-32_R_Becky Barnes_Emergency Generator Addition for Sequoyah Health Center_1927_RES. EMERGENCY GENERATOR ADDITION FOR SEQUOYAH HEALTH CENTER
	1115-32_S_Becky Barnes_Emergency Generator Addition for Sequoyah Health Center_1927_Emergency Generator for Sequoyah Health Center
	1115-33_R_Becky Barnes_HRSA Award Grant_1935_HRSA 2016
	1115-33_S_Becky Barnes_HRSA Award Grant_1935_HRSA Grant Award 2016
	1115-34_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department
	1115-35_R_Commissioner Smedley_Transfer of Discretionary Funds - Revised



